
 

Agenda No. 2019–22 November 25, 2019 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2019-22 

REGULAR MEETING NOVEMBER 25, 2019 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

WORK SESSION 

5:30 p.m. – Legislative Priorities Discussion 

 
It is the mission of the City of Fairbanks to provide quality essential services to all City residents 

to ensure Fairbanks is a vibrant place to live, work, thrive, and visit.  

 

REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. ROLL CALL 

 

 

2. INVOCATION 

 

 

3. FLAG SALUTATION 

 

 

4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards) 

 

 

5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, oral communications to the City Council on any item not up 

for public hearing.  Testimony is limited to three minutes, and the comment period will end 

no later than 7:30 p.m.  Any person wishing to speak needs to complete the register located 

in the hallway.  Respectful standards of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all 

speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any 

particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, please 

silence all cell phones and electronic devices.  

 

 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  Consent 

Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so requests.  In the 

event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda. 

 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 1 of 35



 

Agenda No. 2019–22 November 25, 2019 Page 2 of 3 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 *a) Regular Meeting Minutes of September 23, 2019 

 

 

8. SPECIAL ORDERS 

 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following Liquor License Applications for Renewal.  Public Testimony will be 

taken and limited to three minutes.   

 

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

3489 Arctic Fox Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Arctic Fox Bar, LLC 623 Old Steese Highway 

704 Costco Wholesale #1342 Package Store 
Costco Wholesale 

Corporation 
48 College Road 

 

 

9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 

 

  a) Special Reports 

 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

 

12. NEW BUSINESS 

 

*a) Resolution No. 4895 – A Resolution Stating the City of Fairbanks Legislative and 

Capital Priorities for 2020.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   

 

*b) Resolution No. 4896 – A Resolution in Support of State House Resolution 

Supporting Issuance of Elizabeth Peratrovich $1 Coin.  Introduced by Council 

Member Cleworth.   

 

 

13. DISCUSSION ITEMS (Information and Reports)  

 

 a) Committee Reports 

 

 

 14. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

*a) Acknowledgment of Payment of Lateral Hire Sign-on Bonuses (FPD) 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 2 of 35



 

Agenda No. 2019–22 November 25, 2019 Page 3 of 3 

 

*b) Acknowledgment of Payment of Lateral Hire Sign-on Bonus (FECC) 

 

*c) Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee Meeting Minutes of January 9, 2019 

 

*d) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2019 

 

 

15. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

16. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 

 

17. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

 

18. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 

19. ADJOURNMENT 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 3 of 35



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
The City Council convened at 6:30 p.m. on the above date, following a 5:30 p.m. Work Session 
on the Minnie Street Corridor Study, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks City Council 
at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Mayor Jim 
Matherly presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Shoshana Kun, Seat A 

June Rogers, Seat B 
Valerie Therrien, Seat C 
Kathryn Ottersten, Seat D 
Jerry Cleworth, Seat E 
David Pruhs, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Margarita Bell, Controller/Acting Chief Financial Officer 
Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Jeff Jacobson, Public Works Director 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff 
Kristi Merideth, FECC Manager 
Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director 
Nancy Reeder, Police Chief 
Tod Chambers, Assistant Fire Chief  
Teal Soden, Communications Director 
Bob Pristash, City Engineer 
Peyton Merideth, FPD Lieutenant  
Jim Styers, Fire Chief 
 

City Clerk Danyielle Snider read the Mission Statement of the City of Fairbanks.   
 
INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Snider. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Matherly asked everyone to rise and join him in the Flag Salutation. 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
Donna Gardino, P.O. Box 85056, Fairbanks – Ms. Gardino stated she is a board member of the 
Downtown Association (DTA) and spoke to the different types of roads and traffic patterns in 
the downtown area.  She spoke to the importance of good City streets and street maintenance.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 4 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 10 

She stated that Public Works needs to be funded to keep the downtown streets, paths, gutters, 
and parks clean.  She spoke to certain areas that could use funding for abatement projects.   
 
Mr. Pruhs and Ms. Rogers asked Ms. Gardino to email the information; Ms. Gardino stated she 
would email the City Clerk the information and request that it be passed on to the City Council.   
 
Chris Miller, 413 Cowles Street, Fairbanks – Mr. Miller stated he agrees with the DTA’s winter 
strategy and stated that the City needs to figure out how to do more with less.  He stated the State 
Department of Transportation (DOT) is doing a good job at doing more with less.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Mr. Miller how many employees the DTA staffs; Mr. Miller stated they 
staff 0.7 employees.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked Mr. Miller to be more specific with the requests to the City.  Mr. Miller 
stated winter road maintenance needs to be deliberate.  
 
Ms. Kun thanked Mr. Miller for coming to the meeting and asked for an update on donations.  
Mr. Miller stated there are a few donors each year, but it is never enough sustainable funding.  
Ms. Kun asked if there were any new fundraisers coming up; Mr. Miller stated there is only the 
idea about collaboration with the Mayor’s office for snow removal.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated the DTA and the City have worked in collaboration on many projects over the 
years.  Mr. Miller and Ms. Rogers spoke to the different challenges involved with snow removal 
in the downtown core area.   
 
Victor Buberge, P.O. Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge stated he has hopes that City snow 
removal will be swift.  He stated unions should not be able to dictate that the City cannot use 
volunteer firefighters.   
 
Frank Turney, 1434 Lacey Street, #B, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney spoke to the importance of police 
using less-lethal weapons and asked why nobody is doing anything about racism in the jury pool.  
Mr. Turney stated that if a radio station is going to give Mayor Matherly and Kathryn Dodge 
airtime, they should give equal time to Lakesha Jordan and himself as mayoral candidates.  He 
encouraged everyone to vote in the upcoming election and spoke to historically low voter 
turnout.  He stated he does not hate the LGBTQ community, but he supports religious freedom.   
 
Randy Griffin, P.O. Box 73653, Fairbanks – Mr. Griffin stated Fairbanks is in danger of losing 
freedom depending on how citizens vote in the upcoming election.  He stated that if a certain 
individual is elected as Mayor, Ordinance No. 6093 would become law without a vote of the 
citizens.  He spoke in strong support of allowing the citizens to vote on the issue and pointed out 
that Anchorage citizens were allowed to vote on a similar issue.  He stated a change to the City 
Seal would be in order if the freedom-robbing ordinance passes, and he displayed a sample of 
what the City Seal might look like if that happened.  The proposed Seal contained a broken heart 
and read, “Subjugated on December 9, 2019.”  
 
Julie Smyth, 717 9th Avenue, Fairbanks – Ms. Smyth stated she is Inupiaq, and it is something 
people discriminate against her for.  She stated she is also bisexual and, when people find out, 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 5 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 10 

they also may discriminate against her for that.  She stated it is not okay for religious people to 
discriminate based on her being Inupiaq, but for some reason it is okay for them to discriminate 
against her for being bisexual.  She stated it is not something that should go on the ballot.  She 
encouraged voting in the upcoming election and reminded everyone about early voting.   
 
Ms. Kun stated she would like to say happy Bisexuality Day; Ms. Smyth thanked Ms. Kun.  
 
Lakesha Jordan, 505 Stewart, Fairbanks – Ms. Jordan stated that businesses on the outskirts of 
the downtown area are not as visible during events happening downtown.  She suggested that 
event locations be rotated so that everyone can share in access to those events.   
 
Ms. Rogers asked Ms. Jordan if she had taken her idea to the DTA.  Ms. Jordan stated she had 
not had time to take her idea to the DTA yet.   
 
Hearing no more requests for comment, Mayor Matherly declared Citizens’ Comments closed. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mx. Ottersten, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Mr. Pruhs pulled the Recommendation for Appointment to the FNSB Planning Commission 
from the Consent Agenda. 
 
Mr. Cleworth pulled Ordinance No. 6113 from the Consent Agenda.   
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection to APPROVING the 
Agenda, as Amended, and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 

 
City Clerk Snider read the Consent Agenda, as Amended, into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2019 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
b) Regular Meeting Minutes of July 22, 2019 
 

APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council heard interested citizens concerned with the following 

Marijuana License Applications for Renewal:   
  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 6 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 10 

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

17250 Pipe and Leaf Retail Marijuana 
Store Haley Essig 3546 Airport Way 

11927 Green Life Supply, LLC Retail Marijuana 
Store Green Life Supply, LLC 511 30th Avenue 

10958 Green Life Supply, LLC Standard Marijuana 
Cultivation Green Life Supply, LLC 511 30th Avenue 

11051 Northlink, LLC Standard Marijuana 
Cultivation Northlink, LLC 1550 Cushman Street, 

Suite B 

11053 True Dank Retail Marijuana 
Store True Dank, LLC 1550 Cushman Street, 

Suite A 

12964 Fairdanks Cannabis Retail Marijuana 
Store West Front Andrew, LLC 29 College Road, 

Suite 8C 
 
Mx. Ottersten, seconded by Ms. Kun, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Marijuana License 
Applications for Renewal.   
 
Frank Turney – Mr. Turney offered his support for all the license renewals.   
 
Hearing no more requests for comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony closed. 
 
Mayor Matherly asked Clerk Snider to speak to the violations included in the packet in regard 
to Green Life Supply, LLC.  Ms. Snider stated that the Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
(AMCO) has two reported violations, and she pointed out that the owner, Nathan Davis, is 
present if the Council would like to speak with him.   
 
Nathan Davis, 511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Davis stated one of the violations was a late 
tax payment, and he did not realize it would result in a violation.  He explained that when he was 
notified, he contacted the State of Alaska and took care of it, but he ran behind the following 
month.  He stated he understood there was a 5% penalty, which he paid.  Mr. Davis stated the 
other violation was in regard to smell; he stated he has purchased a new filtration system, and the 
problem has been corrected.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked how much the new filtration system cost; Mr. Davis replied that it was more 
than $30,000.  He stated he has worked as hard as possible to contain the smell.  
 
Ms. Kun asked Mr. Davis when he would be opening an onsite consumption space; Mr. Davis 
stated he had no intention of doing so.  
 
Mayor Matherly commended Mr. Davis for the investment he made in adding the new filtration 
system and for caring about the neighbors and neighborhood.  
 
Ms. Rogers thanked Mr. Davis for attending to personally address the concerns raised.   
 
Ms. Therrien shared her concern for the amount of police activity at Northlink and True Dank 
and asked what the issues were.  Mayor Matherly stated Police Chief Reeder and Deputy Chief 
Welborn were not present but that he had spoken with them.  He stated the issues were not of 
concern with the license itself.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 7 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 10 

Ms. Kun stated the facility is in an area that already had issues, and the license is not the cause.   
 
Mx. Ottersten pointed out that the Northlink callout list is duplicated for True Dank, and there 
are only 13 total calls.   
 
Mr. Pruhs stated the calls have nothing to do with the license.  He stated that the place next door 
is not the very best housing unit, so calls occurring in the area cannot be helped by the licensee.  
He spoke about the community service provided by such establishments.    
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
MARIJUANA LICENSE APPLICATIONS FOR RENEWAL AS FOLLOWS: 
   
  YEAS:  Therrien, Rogers, Pruhs, Ottersten, Kun, Cleworth 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED. 
 
b) The Fairbanks City Council heard interested citizens concerned with the following 

Marijuana License Application for Transfer of Controlling Interest:  
 

Type:  Marijuana Product Manufacturing Facility, License #16006 
DBA:  Arctic Bakery, LLC 
Applicant: Arctic Bakery, LLC 

    1409 Well Street, Fairbanks 
From:  Arctic Bakery, LLC 

    1409 Well Street, Fairbanks 
 
Ms. Kun, seconded by Mx. Ottersten, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Marijuana License 
Application for Transfer of Controlling Interest.   
 
Mr. Pruhs stated he finds it reprehensible that the City Council weighs in on this type of transfer 
and that he does not believe it is the Council’s duty to judge the licensee.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
MARIJUANA LICENSE APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF CONTROLLING INTEREST 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Kun, Ottersten, Therrien, Pruhs, Cleworth, Rogers 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Matherly stated he has many things to report to the Council.  He asked his Executive 
Assistant, Teal Soden, and Helen Renfrew from Explore Fairbanks to come forward.   
 
Ms. Soden spoke to the upcoming Alaska Federation of Natives (AFN) events and to the 
different entities helping promote the event and gain community involvement.  She spoke to 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 8 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 10 

community outreach and promotion of AFN and to the City of Fairbanks and the Fairbanks 
Police Department’s (FPD) involvement in the convention.   
 
Helen Renfrew, Explore Fairbanks – Ms. Renfrew spoke to the upcoming events of the AFN 
convention and thanked the City of Fairbanks for allowing its staff to participate in various 
planning roles.  She spoke to the various AFN subcommittees and stated they are still recruiting 
volunteers.  She encouraged everyone to sign up and get involved.   
 
Brittany Smart, 907 Terminal Street, Fairbanks – Ms. Smart stated it has been a year since she 
attended a City Council meeting, and she welcomed new Council members.  She spoke to 
upcoming events the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) would be involved with.  She 
encouraged everyone to attend Alaska Defense Forum events and encouraged pre-registration.   
 
Mayor Matherly asked Chief of Staff Mike Meeks to speak to the Interior Gas Utility (IGU).  
Mr. Meeks reported he met with the IGU, and they are installing a few service lines to homes 
this year and plan for more next year.  He reported the City is trying to help by creating permit 
fee waivers for natural gas hookups.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked why the IGU has not been providing quarterly updates to the Council; Mr. 
Meeks stated he would look into the issue.   
 
Mayor Matherly commented on the recent passing of Howard Luke, a respected Native Elder.  
He stated his painting resides in the hallway at City Hall.  Mayor Matherly reported there will 
soon be a non-lethal weapons work session with the City Council and that Police Chief Reeder is 
working on the presentation.  He shared the importance of voting and encouraged everyone to 
get out and vote early or on election day.  He shared that the City has regular meetings with the 
DTA to discuss snow removal in the City. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Kun stated she had no comments.  
 
Ms. Rogers spoke to the importance of delegates of the Native community coming to Fairbanks 
for the AFN convention.  She stated it is important that the event is well-received so that it can 
be held in Fairbanks again in future years.   
 
Ms. Therrien stated she is sad to hear that Golden Heart Plaza is not being well-maintained.  
She stated she would support making sure the downtown area stays clean in the next budget.   
 
Mx. Ottersten stated they share a concern with Golden Heart Plaza.  Mx. Ottersten shared that 
Ms. Kun has gone out with her own trash bags and picked up trash in the park.   
 
Mr. Cleworth spoke about the perfect storm that occurred last year with snow removal and 
stated that equipment failure compounded the issue.  He stated that the City is going back to the 
old way of doing things, and getting behind in the downtown core area never goes well.  He 
stated the downtown area got spoiled when they had the “Clean Team” that took care of graffiti 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 9 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 10 

and other issues.  He stated that Festival Fairbanks maintains Golden Heart Plaza, but everyone 
is likely facing tight budgets.   
 
Public Works Director Jeff Jacobson stated there is a unique problem in the Golden Heart Plaza 
that is not based upon neglect on anyone’s part.  He explained that you can clean the plaza one 
day and come back the next to trash and other unsightly things.  He stated it takes a great deal of 
time and resources to constantly clean up.  He stated there was an unusually high amount of 
graffiti incidents over the summer season, and it takes a lot to stay on top of it every day.   
 
Mr. Cleworth expressed appreciation that every Mayoral candidate is in attendance.     
 
Mayor Matherly stated he met with Julie Jones from Festival Fairbanks, and they are installing 
security cameras at the Plaza to help to combat some of the issues that have occurred.   
 
Mr. Pruhs suggested that Festival Fairbanks and the DTA combine and seek funding to clean up 
the downtown area.  He commended those who try to keep downtown clean.  He commended all 
the candidates running for office and stated he has not hosted any candidates on his radio show 
this year.  He stated, however, that anyone can call in to his show.  He stated he does not like that 
the City Council discusses stock-only and controlling interest-only license transfers, and he 
asked the Clerk and Attorney if those types of items could go on the consent agenda.    
 
Ms. Rogers stated it is important to note that the issues in downtown Fairbanks are a symptom 
of a much larger problem, and there needs to be a greater understanding of the issue.  She stated 
it is not just about trash, but it is about rolling up one’s sleeves and working hard on the issues.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 4891 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Accept Funds 

from the Alaska Division of Homeland Security for the FFY2019 Emergency 
Management Performance Grant.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   

 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Resolution No. 4892 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Accept Funds 

from the Alaska Highway Safety Office for FFY2020 DUI Traffic Enforcement Unit.  
Introduced by Mayor Matherly.    

 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
c) Ordinance No. 6113 – An Ordinance Amending the 2019 Operating and Capital Budgets 

for the Fourth Time.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mx. Ottersten, moved to ADVANCE Ordinance No. 6113.  
 
Mr. Cleworth asked for a staff report from Dispatch Manager Kristi Merideth.  Ms. Merideth 
explained that Westnet is the fire alerting system that helps dispatch fire departments to fires.  
Mr. Cleworth stated he understood it was an old system that had been paid for.  Ms. Merideth 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 10 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 10 

stated they did not charge yearly maintenance fees in the past, but this year fees have to be paid 
in order to continue using the software.  She explained why the funds are needed and stated that 
funding will be included in the proposed 2020 budget.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked how many vacancies there are in the Dispatch Department.  Ms. Merideth 
stated the department is two-and-a-half positions short currently.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADVANCE ORDINANCE NO. 
6113 AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Cleworth, Pruhs, Rogers, Kun, Ottersten, Therrien 
  NAYS: None  
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
a) Committee Reports 
 
Senior Needs Committee – Ms. Therrien stated the committee met and discussed the needs of 
senior citizens in the community; she stated there is a lot of work to be done.  She stated she 
would get information to the Clerk to distribute.   
 
Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) – Ms. Rogers stated a quorum has been difficult to establish 
due to vacancies and asked the Mayor to make some appointments.  Mayor Matherly stated he 
is waiting for the Council to decide what to do with the FDC makeup before appointing 
members, because he does not want to appoint someone only to have to let them go if the FDC 
shrinks.    
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
a) Recommendation for Appointment to FNSB Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Cleworth, moved to CONCUR with the Appointment to the 
FNSB Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Pruhs stated he pulled the item because he believes he has a conflict of interest.  He stated 
that Jason McComas-Roe is a licensee with Pruhs Real Estate Group, so he would abstain from 
voting on the appointment.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO CONCUR WITH THE 
RECOMMENDATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE FNSB PLANNING COMMISSION 
AS FOLLOWS:  
 
  YEAS:  Therrien, Kun, Cleworth, Ottersten, Rogers 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSTAIN: Pruhs 
   Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 11 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 10 

   
b) Reappointment to the Clay Street Cemetery Commission 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
c) Board of Plumber Examiner Meeting Minutes of June 18, 2019 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
d) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of July 10, 2019 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Kun thanked Ms. Renfrew and Ms. Soden for all the work they have done in preparing for 
the AFN Convention.  She gave a land acknowledgement and spoke to the loss of Howard Luke.  
Ms. Kun stated she has lost five people to suicide in the past two weeks and encouraged anyone 
who needs help to text 74141 or call 800-273-TALK.  She reminded everyone that early voting 
is open and encouraged everyone to vote.    
 
Ms. Rogers stated she had no comments.   
 
Ms. Therrien offered sympathies to the family of Howard Luke.  She thanked her opponent for 
being a gentleman during the campaign and asked anyone who sees her out holding a sign to 
wave.   
 
Mx. Ottersten jokingly stated that apathy is the way to go when it comes to voting.  
 
Mr. Cleworth stated he had no comments.  
 
Mr. Pruhs thanked City Engineer Bob Pristash for the Minnie Street Work Session and 
commended Margarita Bell for a job well done in acting as the Interim Chief Financial Officer.  
 
CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
City Clerk Snider reported that early voting is available at City Hall until 5:00 p.m., September 
31.  She announced that polls will open at 7:00 a.m. on Tuesday, October 1, 2019. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Kun, seconded by Mx. Ottersten, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Matherly declared the meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 12 of 35



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 10 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       JIM MATHERLY, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  EB 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 13 of 35



  City of Fairbanks   Office of the City Clerk 

                  800 Cushman Street  Fairbanks, AK  99701       (907)459-6715 

                    Fax  (907)459-6710 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk   

 

SUBJECT: Liquor License Renewals 

 

DATE:  November 21, 2019 

 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 

following liquor license renewals:   

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

3489 Arctic Fox Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Arctic Fox Bar, LLC 623 Old Steese Highway 

704 Costco Wholesale #1342 Package Store 
Costco Wholesale 

Corporation 
48 College Road 

 

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether to protest liquor license 

renewal applications after holding a public hearing.   

 

Per the Council’s request, the Police Department has included a call report for the locations 

listed.   

 

There are no department-recommended protests for the above-listed applications for renewal.   

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 14 of 35



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 
ARCTIC BAR: 623 OLD STEESE HWY 

10/29/18-10/28/19 

Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

10/26/2019 00:02:47 CIVIL PROBLEM 623 OLD STEESE HWY 041 NRP 10/26/2019 00:10:55 

10/19/2019 03:34:00 DISTURBANCE PHYSICAL 623 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 10/19/2019 03:43:27 

10/19/2019 02:33:07 DISTURBANCE VERBAL 623 OLD STEESE HWY 041 NRP 10/19/2019 02:48:21 

19003988 10/15/2019 09:30:17 ASSAULT - BRA VO 623 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 10/15/2019 09:30:31 

10/11/201916:04:17 SI - FOLLOW-UP 623 OLD STEESE HWY 02 NRP 10/11/2019 19:44:39 

10/09/2019 15: 15:09 SUPPLEMENT AL-ALPHA 623 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 10/11/2019 08:54:21 

10/07/2019 14:09:02 PAST DISTURBANCE - 623 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 10/07/2019 17:25:14 

09/24/2019 23:51 :16 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 623 OLD STEESE HWY 026 NRP 09/25/2019 00:06:24 

08/31/2019 02:02:49 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 034 COMM 08/31/2019 02:17:02 

08/25/2019 00:44:50 LOUD PARTY - CHARLIE 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 08/25/2019 01 : 11 :06 

08/17/2019 15:33:35 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 08/17/2019 20:21:54 

08/10/2019 03:45:39 INCAPACITATED PERSON 623 OLD STEESE HWY S8 NRP 08/10/2019 04: 13: 17 

08/10/2019 03:28:24 DISTURBANCE PHYSICAL 623 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 08/10/2019 03:38:58 

19002863 07/29/2019 06:32:20 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 623 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 07/29/2019 06:35:59 

07/20/2019 02:53:51 PAST DISTURBANCE - 623 OLD STEESE HWY S8 NRP 07/20/2019 03:20:57 

07/20/2019 02:50:43 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 034 NRP 07/20/2019 03:37:40 

06/14/2019 02:27:04 DUI - PARKED - CHARLIE 623 OLD STEESE HWY 016 NRP 06/14/2019 02:44:55 

06/02/2019 03:04:54 PD PROQA PROCESSED 623 OLD STEESE HWY 911 06/02/2019 03:07:24 

05/15/2019 17:06:58 DUI - MOVING - DEL TA 623 OLD STEESE HWY LOCA 05/15/2019 17:41 :46 

05/12/2019 01:47:48 SI - BAR CHECK 623 OLD STEESE HWY 017 NRP 05/12/2019 01 :53: 14 

04/06/2019 01 :05:33 SI - FIELD CONTACT 623 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 04/06/2019 01 :07:05 

04/04/2019 23:08:47 SI - BAR CHECK 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 04/04/2019 23: 10:58 

03/05/2019 13:54:16 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY S1 NRP 03/05/2019 14:52:16 

03/04/2019 00:20:06 PAST DISTURBANCE - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 025 NRP 03/04/2019 00:54:53 

19000741 03/03/2019 22:17:33 MISSING - BRAVO 623 OLD STEESE HWY 034 RPT 03/03/2019 23:28:17 

19000545 02/16/2019 03:22:58 MVC- NO INJURIES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 RPT 02/16/2019 04:51 :06 

02/10/2019 02:40:52 PAST TRAFFIC 623 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 02/10/2019 06:58:53 

01/20/2019 01 :40:43 SI - FOLLOW-UP 623 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 01/20/2019 01 :48:04 

Report Generated: 10/28/2019 09:54:57 I User ID: 1245 

\ \fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory _ EventListWithReportNumbers_Landscape Page 1 of 2 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 15 of 35



Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

19000233 01/19/2019 21 :32:43 10-36 623 OLD STEESE HWY 016 RPT 01/19/2019 22:54:17 

01/19/2019 03:07:40 INCAPACITATED PERSON 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 01/19/2019 04:01 :06 

01/19/2019 01 :50:26 SI - BAR CHECK 623 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 01/19/2019 01 :53:51 

01/06/2019 03:26:46 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 01/06/2019 03:40:14 

01/06/2019 01:20:34 DISTURBANCE 623 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 01/06/2019 01 :31 :13 

19000061 01/05/2019 01:51 :18 10-36 623 OLD STEESE HWY 016 RPT 01/05/2019 03:27:54 

18004556 12/22/2018 02:18:45 WEAPONS INCIDENT - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 013 RPT 12/22/2018 03: 13:20 

12/07/2018 01:02:17 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 12/07/2018 01:41:08 

11/13/2018 12:08:06 PRIVATE IMPOUND 623 OLD STEESE HWY PRI 11/13/2018 12:09:35 

11/10/2018 23:03:53 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES - 623 OLD STEESE HWY S9 NRP 11/10/2018 23:55:37 

Total Number of Events Liso 

ARCTIC BAR: 623 OLD STEESE HWY Page 2 of 2 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 16 of 35



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 
COSTCO- 48 COLLEGE RD 

I 0729718- ~ 0728n 9 

Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

10/23/2019 18:50:06 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 019 NRP 10/23/2019 19:06:24 

10/19/2019 14:06:25 911 HANG-UP - CHARLIE 48 COLLEGE RD S11 NRP 10/19/2019 15:19:00 

09/23/2019 11 :37:15 HIT & RUN 48 COLLEGE RD 015 NRP 09/23/2019 11 :48: 12 

09/22/2019 00:10:51 10-36 48 COLLEGE RD 026 WARN 09/22/2019 00: 18: 14 

09/20/2019 11 :31 :12 THREAT- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 07 NRP 09/20/2019 16:18:02 

09/19/2019 21 :29:03 PRIVATE IMPOUND 48 COLLEGE RD PRI 09/19/2019 21 :31 :39 

09/18/2019 14: 14:33 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE - 48 COLLEGE RD 054 NRP 09/18/2019 14:30:42 

09/11/201915:31:18 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP 09/11/201915:47:36 

19003374 09/04/2019 13:08:40 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 145 RPT 09/04/2019 15:02:22 

19003374 09/01/2019 12:17:19 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 07 RPT 09/01/2019 14:20:05 

08/31/2019 20:54:09 DAMAGENANDALISM - 48 COLLEGE RD CALL 08/31/2019 21 :04:12 

19003212 08/21/2019 15:38:05 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 026 RPT 08/21/2019 16:16:24 

19003177 08/16/2019 18:30:25 THEFT - DEL TA 48 COLLEGE RD 09 RPT 08/19/2019 12:11 :22 

08/12/2019 00:16:35 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 034 NRP 08/12/2019 00:23:51 

08/09/2019 13:40:36 AOA - NON URGENT - 48 COLLEGE RD 041 NRP 08/09/2019 14:28:05 

08/09/2019 13:37:03 AST SUSPICIOUS 48 COLLEGE RD LOG 08/09/2019 13:47:28 

08/08/2019 19:09:16 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES- 48 COLLEGE RD 012 NRP 08/08/2019 19:30:19 

07/21/2019 22:50:15 ALARM OTHER- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 019 FAB 07/21/2019 23:06:04 

07/20/2019 17:53:19 DAMAGENANDALISM - 48 COLLEGE RD 013 NRP 07/20/2019 18:41:12 

07/14/2019 12:01 :40 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 07/14/2019 12:03:42 

07/03/2019 15:41:55 REDDI 48 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP 07/03/2019 16:31:31 

19002507 07/03/2019 12:24:41 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD DESK RPT 07/03/2019 15:33:09 

06/30/2019 10:59:57 ANIMAL COMPLAINT 48 COLLEGE RD LOG 06/30/2019 11 :08:35 

06/29/2019 12: 11 :58 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 07 NRP 06/29/2019 12:33:34 

06/29/2019 00:22:19 10-36 48 COLLEGE RD 016 WARN 06/29/2019 00:26:47 

06/17/2019 19:04:27 PAST HIT & RUN - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP 06/17/2019 19:24:13 

06/09/2019 17:20:34 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 019 NRP 06/09/2019 17:31 :23 

06/08/2019 18:12:09 WELFARE CHECK - LOG 48 COLLEGE RD S3 NRP 06/08/2019 18:25:41 

Report Generated: 10/28/2019 09:56:03 I User ID: 1245 

\ \fecc-app\ossicad\cadlrpt\EventHistory _ EventListWithReportNumbers _ Landscape Page 1 of 4 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 17 of 35



Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

19002108 06/08/2019 09:43:57 HITRUN - NO/MINOR INJ - 48 COLLEGE RD 041 RPT 06/08/2019 16:10:02 

19000707 06/04/2019 13:53:22 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 041 RPT 06/04/2019 14:24:32 

05/27/2019 13:45:25 ALARM OTHER- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 03 FAB 05/27/2019 14:05:07 

05/26/2019 14:57:08 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 041 NRP 05/26/2019 15:05:31 

05/23/2019 23:36:52 DISTURBANCE - 48 COLLEGE RD 021 NRP 05/23/2019 23:49:50 

05/21/2019 18:53:30 LOCATE 48 COLLEGE RD 013 NRP 05/21/2019 19:02:06 

19001790 05/18/2019 20:15:19 DISTURBANCE - 48 COLLEGE RD 029 RPT 05/18/2019 21 :32:53 

05/15/2019 10:37:06 SUSPICIOUS PERSON - 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 05/15/2019 11 :35:05 

05/11/201918:17:29 WELFARE CHECK - LOG 48 COLLEGE RD S3 NRP 05/11/2019 18:43:57 

19001668 05/11/2019 15:41 :08 THEFT FROM VEHICLE - 48 COLLEGE RD DESK RPT 05/12/2019 18:21 :10 

19000707 05/05/2019 12:19:42 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 041 RPT 05/05/2019 13: 18:02 

05/05/2019 00:51 :46 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 05 NRP 05/05/2019 00:54:17 

05/01/2019 16:57:06 WANTED PERSON - 48 COLLEGE RD CBO 05/02/2019 09:50:42 

04/28/2019 00:03:04 10-36 48 COLLEGE RD 041 WARN 04/28/2019 00:09:32 

04/26/2019 14:05:40 PAST HIT & RUN - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP 04/26/2019 14: 14:26 

04/08/2019 13: 16:48 PRIVATE IMPOUND 48 COLLEGE RD PRI 04/08/2019 13:30:09 

03/30/2019 10:26:26 PAST HIT & RUN - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD 07 NRP 03/30/2019 10:57:02 

19000995 03/22/2019 18:58: 17 THEFT FROM VEHICLE - 48 COLLEGE RD DESK RPT 03/22/2019 20: 11 :43 

03/18/2019 20:58:29 ALARM HOLDUP/PANIC - 48 COLLEGE RD 029 FAB 03/18/2019 21 :16:19 

03/16/2019 02:15:47 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 041 FAB 03/16/2019 02:22:31 

03/15/2019 01 :30:07 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 03/15/2019 02:52:28 

03/14/2019 00:47:46 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 05 FAB 03/14/2019 01 :07: 19 

03/12/2019 00:27:48 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD L7 FAB 03/12/2019 00:35:36 

03/09/2019 23:55:33 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 019 FAB 03/10/2019 00:03:20 

03/07/201911:58:08 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD 03 NRP 03/07/2019 13:03:59 

03/02/2019 15:45:59 MINOR TRAF VIOUCOMP 48 COLLEGE RD 029 NRP 03/02/2019 16:01 :49 

03/01/2019 21 :11 :24 PAST MVC - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD LOG 03/01/2019 21 :50:57 

19000707 02/28/2019 20:41:54 THEFT - DELTA 48 COLLEGE RD 041 RPT 02/28/2019 22:08:16 

02/26/2019 00:29:37 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 029 FAB 02/26/2019 00:4 7:07 

02/18/2019 10:20:08 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP 02/18/2019 10:35:36 

19000465 02/08/2019 18:51 :21 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 48 COLLEGE RD 021 RPT 02/08/2019 21 :14:39 

02/07/2019 01 :27:27 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD CALL 02/07/2019 01 :37:21 

COSTCO- 48 COLLEGE RD Page 2 of 4 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 18 of 35



Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

01/31/2019 22:05:06 SI-VID 48 COLLEGE RD 05 NRP 01/31/2019 22:10:05 

01/27/2019 17:18:15 SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES- 48 COLLEGE RD 04 NRP 01/27/2019 17:29:57 

01/25/2019 21 :59:04 10-36 48 COLLEGE RD 021 WARN 01/25/2019 22:01 :01 

01/23/2019 16:31 :47 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD 039 NRP 01/23/2019 17:07:15 

19000276 01/23/2019 12:39:44 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 022 RPT 01/23/2019 15:53:22 

01/17/2019 23:46:35 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 041 FAB 01/18/2019 00:42:01 

01/12/2019 23:21 :21 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 013 FAB 01/12/2019 23:58:06 

01/10/2019 13:21 :40 TRESPASS/UNWANTED - 48 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP 01/10/2019 13:38:09 

19000099 01 /08/2019 12:45:21 THEFT - DELTA 48 COLLEGE RD 022 RPT 01/08/2019 16:59:11 

01/05/2019 17:49:43 MINOR TRAF VIOUCOMP 48 COLLEGE RD CBWC 01/05/2019 18:38:04 

19000021 01 /02/2019 18:53:39 MVC - NO INJURIES - 48 COLLEGE RD 021 RPT 01/02/2019 20:47:11 

01/01/2019 03:28:34 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 013 FAB 01/01/2019 03:35:45 

12/30/2018 08:28:28 FOUND PROPERTY - 48 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP 12/30/2018 08:36: 16 

12/25/2018 15:31 :57 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 04 FAB 12/25/2018 16:30:41 

12/25/2018 08:42: 13 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 02 FAN 12/25/2018 09:42:03 

12/25/2018 03:28:54 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 013 FAB 12/25/2018 03:42:09 

12/23/2018 20:55: 11 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD CBAC 12/23/2018 21 :07:22 

18004517 12/18/2018 16:58:23 PAST HIT & RUN - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD DESK RPT 12/18/2018 17:28:06 

12/13/2018 18:25:38 REDDI 48 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP 12/13/2018 18:50:52 

18004474 12/13/2018 18:09:25 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 039 RPT 12/13/2018 20:56:23 

12/10/2018 16:05:00 SI -ADMIN 48 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP 12/10/2018 16:25:10 

12/08/2018 12: 10:44 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 019 NRP 12/08/2018 12:26:22 

12/07/2018 19:53:51 PD PROQA PROCESSED 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 12/07/2018 19:56:14 

18004308 12/05/2018 08:00:26 SI - FOLLOW-UP 48 COLLEGE RD 025 RPT 12/05/2018 08:24:42 

12/04/2018 15:17:45 SUSPICIOUS PERSON - 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 12/04/2018 15:24:20 

12/02/2018 13:42:10 VERBAL DOMESTIC DIST 48 COLLEGE RD 07 NRP 12/02/2018 14:13:07 

12/02/2018 12:01:18 PAST TRAFFIC 48 COLLEGE RD 019 NRP 12/02/2018 13:41 :42 

18004308 12/01/2018 16:35:05 FRAUD/FORGERY - 48 COLLEGE RD 029 RPT 12/01/2018 17:56:09 

11/29/2018 17:07:06 PAST HIT & RUN - ALPHA 48 COLLEGE RD COMM 11/30/2018 04:13:50 

11/23/2018 22:14:13 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 08 FAB 11/23/2018 22:25:28 

11/23/201810:17:15 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD VIP1 NRP 11/23/2018 18:27:31 

11/23/2018 07:01 :51 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD 041 NRP 11/23/2018 17:51 :04 

COSTCO- 48 COLLEGE RD Page 3 of 4 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 19 of 35



Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

11/22/2018 20:08:35 ALARM OTHER- BRAVO 48 COLLEGE RD 08 FAB 11/22/2018 20:55:56 

11/22/2018 06:57:23 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 019 NRP 11/22/2018 07:18:22 

11/22/2018 04:52:36 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD CBWC 11/22/2018 04:56:10 

11/22/2018 04:00:32 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD S9 FAB 11/22/2018 06:07:26 

11/21/2018 13:57:27 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD VIP1 NRP 11/21/2018 20:39:43 

11/21/2018 07:36:58 SI - SECURITY CHECK 48 COLLEGE RD S5 NRP 11/21/201819:00:15 

11/20/2018 18:32:31 ALARM HOLDUP/PANIC - 48 COLLEGE RD 02 FAB 11/20/2018 18:35:43 

11/20/2018 06:41 :32 SI-ADMIN 48 COLLEGE RD VIP1 NRP 11/20/2018 20:42:07 

11/19/2018 21 :29:39 ALARM BURGLARY - 48 COLLEGE RD 029 FAB 11/19/2018 21 :51 :16 

11/19/2018 17:29:09 SI - PUBLIC 48 COLLEGE RD VIP1 NRP 11/19/2018 19:49:02 

11/19/2018 17:09:46 SI - PUBLIC 48 COLLEGE RD S5 NRP 11/19/2018 20:36:26 

11/17/2018 02:41 :17 10-36 48 COLLEGE RD 11/17/2018 03:10:01 

Total Number of Even 

COSTCO· 48 COLLEGE RD Page 4 of 4 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 20 of 35



Resolution No. 4895 
Page 1 

 Introduced by: Mayor Matherly 
 Date:  November 25, 2019 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4895 
 

A RESOLUTION STATING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
LEGISLATIVE AND CAPITAL PRIORITIES FOR 2020 

 
WHEREAS, the City is grateful for the funding provided by the State of Alaska which has 

added significantly to the City’s ability to provide essential services; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of the services the City provides are centered on protecting the lives 

and property Fairbanks citizens; preparedness and infrastructure are key in that endeavor; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has identified the following legislative and capital 
priorities; the public had the opportunity to speak to this Resolution at the November 25, 2019 
City Council meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Fairbanks City Council that the 2020 
legislative and capital priorities of the City of Fairbanks are stated in the attached list.  In summary, 
the projects are ranked as follows: 

 
2020 Legislative Priorities 
 
1. Maintain PERS contribution rates 
2. Maintain a baseline of $60 million annually in Community Assistance Program funding 
3. Provide for a financial assistance plan to assist municipalities in investigation and 

cleanup efforts relating to Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) contamination 
4. Assist with boiler conversions 
5. Consider City of Fairbanks’ concerns with the new “Tier 5” defined benefit plan being 

discussed by the legislature 
 

2020 Capital Priorities 
 
1. Fund the Emergency Service Patrol 
2. Provide funding for construction of a Law Enforcement Firing Range and Training 

Facility 
3. Provide funding for the replacement of the City Hall heating system 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to send copies of this 

resolution to the Office of the Governor and the Interior Alaska Legislative Delegation.  
 

 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of November 2019.   
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 21 of 35



Resolution No. 4895 
Page 2 

 
 
  _________________________________ 
  Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 22 of 35



CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
Jim Matherly, Mayor 

800 CUSHMAN STREET 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 99701-4615 

OFFICE: 907-459-6793 
FAX: 907-459-6787 

jmatherly@fairbanks.us 
 
 

City of Fairbanks Legislative Priorities 2020 
FINAL 

 
1. PERS Contribution Rate:  The City of Fairbanks supports maintaining the 22% PERS 

contribution rate as was agreed to by PERS employers and the State in allocating the 
unfunded liability. 

 
2. Community Assistance Program:  The City of Fairbanks is concerned with the yearly 

reductions in the community assistance program.  The City requests that the State funds a 
baseline floor of $60 million annually to the program. 

 
3. Aqueous Film-Forming Foam Contamination Fund:  The Fairbanks Fire Department 

and most other firefighting services in the State of Alaska (federal, state, and local) used 
Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) for suppression of petroleum-based fires.  
Unbeknownst to these agencies, chemicals in the AFFF are harmful to humans.  AFFF was 
used in training exercises at the Fairbanks Regional Fire Training Center (FRFTC) by the 
Fairbanks Fire Department, State of Alaska agencies, i.e. Fairbanks International Airport, 
the University, and other firefighting agencies, and has been found in the ground water in 
and around the FRFTC.  The City of Fairbanks is actively assessing and remedying the 
AFFF contamination from the FRFTC.  AFFF contamination is a state-wide problem.  The 
$9.4M appropriated to DEC to investigate PFAS contamination is a good start, but the State 
needs to provide funding and assistance to municipalities for these investigations and 
cleanup efforts, especially when State agencies were responsible for some of the 
contamination. 

 
The City of Fairbanks requests financial assistance for the City and other Alaskan 
municipalities which are protecting their residents from the potential health effects of PFC 
groundwater contamination.  To date, the City of Fairbanks has spent over $4M on 
remediation – an amount which has been passed along to all property owners within the city 
limits, including elderly home owners on a fixed income and other low-earning 
households.  These costs are only expected to grow as the groundwater plume continues to 
spread.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 23 of 35

mailto:jmatherly@fairbanks.us
mailto:jmatherly@fairbanks.us


4. Emergency Service Patrol:  The City of Fairbanks requests $300,000 for the City’s 
Emergency Service Patrol (ESP).  Title 47 (AS 47.37) mandates that persons who are 
incapacitated by alcohol or drugs must be taken into protective custody by a peace officer 
or member of an emergency service patrol.  The City seeks to continue its ESP for city-
wide transport of incapacitated persons.  The ESP is the most efficient and cost-effective 
means of meeting the state-imposed mandates under Title 47.  The City police department 
is currently overworked and understaffed, and given the high call volume created by 
inebriated individuals, the presence of ESP has taken a substantial workload off of the 
police officers and paramedics, which allows them to focus on other critical areas of public 
safety. 

 
5. Conversion assistance: With the completion of a 5.2M gallon LNG storage tank in 

Fairbanks, the local gas utility will be able to start connecting customers who already have 
a gas distribution system in front of their homes.  The City is requesting assistance from 
the State in finding creative solutions as it pertains to financial assistance for residents 
converting their boilers from fuel oil to gas.  Assistance could come in the form of tax 
credits, low interest loans, loan guarantees, etc.  The push for these conversions should 
start now, with conversions occurring summer of 2020.  The City also requests that the 
Interior Delegation work with the Congressional Delegation to elicit their assistance with 
federal resources, specifically EPA funding for clean air initiatives. 

6. Construction of a Law Enforcement Firing Range and Training Facility:  The City of 
Fairbanks has joined a collaborative regional effort to obtain property and construct a law 
enforcement firing range and training facility.  The only current law enforcement range is 
located on the Fairbanks International Airport property. Having a shooting range/training 
facility on airport property has been historically problematic.  The current rules 
surrounding the range make basic training topics and drills difficult and sometimes 
outright prohibited.  Current rules also prohibit law enforcement from bringing citizen 
groups (such as citizen police academies) to the range during these public training 
programs.  During 2018, areawide law enforcement agencies were notified the firearms 
training range would be shut down within the next year.  There is currently no other 
firearms training facility within interior Alaska that is capable of functioning as a training 
range. 

 
A new range facility would be open to and serve every local, state, and federal law 
enforcement agency within interior Alaska.  It would also serve as the primary training 
site for our interior Alaska police academy.  At a time when law enforcement is under 
constant scrutiny and expected to perform at the highest level of professionalism, a high 
level of training and a professional training environment is essential.  The $22k 
appropriations in the FY20 capital budget for the design of this facility is very much 
appreciated.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 24 of 35



7. Replacement of the City Hall Heating System:  The current heating system for City Hall 
is the original steam heating system.  This system is well beyond its life cycle and needs 
replacing.  The magnitude of this effort, which will need to be completed within a few 
short summer months, is projected to costs $5M because of the asbestos and lead-based 
paint that most certainly will be encountered.  The City requests $5M from the Capital 
program to replace the heating system. 

 
8. Defined Benefit:  A “Tier 5” defined benefit plan is currently being discussed.  The City 

of Fairbanks is concerned about unfunded liabilities and the exclusive nature regarding 
which employees receive the benefit.  The economic viability of this plan relies on a 7% 
rate of return on investments.  This potential new plan does differ from previous PERS 
plans with the major differences being: employee contributions are higher, employees must 
be 55 years old with 20 years of service, the benefit amount is calculated using the 
employee’s high five years of service instead of high three, and health care is removed 
from the plan.  Defined benefit plans have been cited as an incentive as it pertains to the 
retention of public safety employees. 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 25 of 35



Introduced by:  Council Member Cleworth 
Introduced:  November 25, 2019 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4896 
 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF STATE HOUSE RESOLUTION 
SUPPORTING ISSUANCE OF ELIZABETH PERATROVICH $1 COIN 

 
WHEREAS, the Native American $1 Coin Act authorized the United States Mint to 

issue a series of one-dollar coins depicting prominent Native Americans; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 design depicts Elizabeth Peratrovich of the Tlingit Nation, 

an important civil rights activist who worked to help pass the Alaska Territorial 
Legislature’s Anti-Discrimination Act of 1945, the first anti-discrimination law in the United 
States; and 

 
WHEREAS, the coins issued under the Native American $1 Coin Act traditionally 

have been available only by ordering them from the U.S. mint, which limits availability and 
does not allow for their use in daily commerce; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the resolution by the State House, CS For House Joint Resolution No 
9(STA), requests that these coins be made available through normal banking channels 
throughout the State of Alaska.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fairbanks City Council supports 
the Alaska State House Joint Resolution No 9(STA) in celebrating this very important part 
of Alaska’s history and in promoting circulation of the Elizabeth Peratrovich $1 coin. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of March 2019. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Jim Matherly, Mayor 

 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:   
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 26 of 35



CS FOR HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 9(STA) 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 

THIRTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE-FIRST SESSION 

BY THE HOUSE STATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Offered: 3/13/19 
Referred: Rules 

31-LS0573\M 

Sponsor(s): REPRESENTATIVES JOHNSON, Kreiss-Tomkins, Tarr, Story, Drummond, Zulkosky, Hannan, 
Josephson 

A RESOLUTION 

1 Requesting the United States Secretary of the Treasury to mint not less than 5,000,000 

2 $1 coins honoring Elizabeth Peratrovich under the Native American $1 Coin Act. 

3 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 

4 WHEREAS Elizabeth Peratrovich, of the Tlingit Nation, was an important civil rights 

5 activist who fought for equality for Alaska Natives; and 

6 WHEREAS Elizabeth Peratrovich advocated for the passage of the Alaska Territorial 

7 Legislature's Anti-Discrimination Act of 1945, the first anti-discrimination law in the United 

8 States; and 

9 WHEREAS Elizabeth Peratrovich served as the Grand President of the Alaska Native 

10 Sisterhood; and 

11 WHEREAS, in 1988, the Alaska State Legislature established February 16 of each 

12 year as Elizabeth Peratrovich Day; and 

13 WHEREAS, in 1992, the public gallery of the chambers of the House of 

14 Representatives formerly known as Gallery B was renamed in honor of Elizabeth Peratrovich; 

15 and 

16 WHEREAS Elizabeth Peratrovich was named as a 2018 honoree of the National 

HJR009b -1- CSHJR 9(STA) 
New Text Underlined {DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 27 of 35



31-LS0573\M 

1 Women's History Alliance; and 

2 WHEREAS, in 2020, residents of the state will celebrate Elizabeth Peratrovich and 

3 the 75th anniversary of the Alaska Anti-Discrimination Act; 

4 BE IT RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature requests that the United States 

5 Secretary of the Treasury, under the Native American $1 Coin Act, mint not less than 

6 5,000,000 Elizabeth Peratrovich $1 coins to be issued at face value and delivered to the 

7 Seattle branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco for distribution for deposit in 

8 banks throughout the State of Alaska; and be it 

9 FURTHER RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature requests that the United 

10 States Secretary of the Treasury carry out a continuing campaign to encourage commercial 

11 enterprises to accept and dispense Elizabeth Peratrovich $1 coins. 

12 COPIES of this resolution shall be sent to the Honorable Donald J. Trump, President 

13 of the United States; the Honorable Michael R. Pence, Vice President of the United States and 

14 President of the U.S. Senate; the Honorable Nancy Pelosi, Speaker of the U.S. House of 

15 Representatives; the Honorable Steven T. Mnuchin, United States Secretary of the Treasury; 

16 and the Honorable Lisa Murkowski and the Honorable Dan Sullivan, U.S. Senators, and the 

17 Honorable Don Young, U.S. Representative, members of the Alaska delegation in Congress. 

CSHJR 9(STA) -2- HJR009b 
New Text Underl i ned [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 28 of 35



2020 Native American $i. design unveiled 
Dollar celebrates Elizabeth Peratrovich and Alaska's Anti-Discrimination Law 
by Paul Gilkes, Coin World Senior Editor 

The approved reverse design 
for the 2020 Native American 
dollar was un~eiled Oct. 5 by 
U.S. Mint Chief Administra
tive bfficer Patrick Hernandez. 

The unveiling took place 
during the Alaska Native 
Brothers and Alaska Native Sis
ters Convention at Alaska Pa
cific University in Anchorage. 

The design is dedicated to 
Elizabeth Peratrovich and Alas
ka's Anti-Discrimination Law. 

The design features a por
trait of Peratrovich, whose ad
vocacy was considered a decid
ing factor in the passage of the 

1945 Anti-Discrimination Law 
in the Alaskan state legisla
ture. The foreground features 
a symbol of the Tlingit Raven 
moiety, of which she was a 
member. 

The design was created 
by U.S. Mint Medallic Art
ist Phebe Hemphill who will 
sculpt her own work. 

The Native American dol
lars are produced with an 
Uncirculated circulation
quality finish and offered in 
25-coin rolls, 100-coin bags, 
and 250-coin boxes of rolled 
coins each from the Denver 

and Philadelphia Mints. 

circulated Mint set. 
The dollar will also be 

at the San Francisco Mint 
with standard Proof finish 
for inclusion in the standard 
annual Proof and Silver Proof 
sets and any packaging. C 

Alaskan anti-discrimination advocate Elizabeth 
0

Peratrovich will be honored ont he 
reverse of the 2020 Native American $1 coin. 
Images courtesy of the U.S. Mint. 

COINWORLD.com I October 28, 2019 I 5 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 29 of 35



Memorandum 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Subject: 

Date: 

RE: 

Dear Council, 

City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 

Fairbanks City Council 

City Mayor's Office-Human Resources 

Phone (907) 459-6780 
Fax (907) 459-6731 

Angela Foster-Snow, Human Resources Director 

Jim Matherly, Mayor 
Nancy Reeder, Fairbanks Police Chief 
Margarita Bell, Acting CFO 

Lateral Incentive Payments 

November 15,2019 

Acknowledgement of Payment 

Congratulations to Officers Christian Pergande, Derrick Winter and Cody Taylor for their completion of the 
Fairbanks Police Department Hiring and FTO Process. Each Officer is awarded the $20,000.00 one-time "Sign
on Bonus" for a lateral hire within the Fairbanks Police Department as per Ordinance No. 6050. 
Officer Pergande completed the Field Training Requirement on November 13, 2019. 
Officer Winter completed the Field Training Requirement on November 18, 2019. 
Officer Taylor completed the Field Training Requirement on November 23rd, 2019. 

Ordinance No. 6050; SECTION 1 allowed for a $20,000.00 bonus for "an applicant who is a certified police 
officer in the State of Alaska or is able to meet Alaska Police Standards Council (APSC) certification standards 
without attending a basic officer academy will be paid a $20,000 "sign-on bonus" in their first paycheck, 
subject to the payback provisions specified in the attached "Sign- on Bonus Agreement". 

Thank you to our new Officers for their dedication and commitment to the Fairbanks Police Department. 
We look forward to many years of exceptional service. 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 30 of 35



Memorandum 

To : 

From: 

Through: 

Subject: 

Date: 

RE: 

Dear Council, 

City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 

Fairbanks City Council 

City Mayor's Office-Human Resources 

Phone (907) 459-6780 
Fax (907) 459-6731 

Angela Foster-Snow, Human Resources Director ~ 
Jim Matherly, Mayor 
Kristi Merideth, Dispatch Manager 
Margarita Bell, Acting CFO 

Lateral Incentive and Recruitment Payments 

November 15,2019 

Acknowledgement of Payment 

Congratulations to Dispatcher Elena Weber for her completion of the Fairbanks Emergency Communications 
Center Phase 1 Training on October 26th, 2019. Ms. Weber is awarded one half of the $15,000.00 one-time 
"Sign- on Bonus", $7,500.00 for a lateral hire within the Fairbanks Emergency Communications Center as per 
Ordinance No. 6102, and will be awarded the remaining balance upon successful completion of the 6 month 
probationary period. 

Congratulations to Dispatcher Lead Wenonah Lefthand for the successful recruitment of Ms. Weber. Ms. 
Lefthand is awarded one half of the one-time $5,000.00 "Sign- on Bonus", $2,500.00 as per the same 
Ordinance No. 6102 and will receive the balance in accordance with Ms. Weber's completion of probation. 

Thank you to Ms. Weber and Ms. Lefthand for their dedication and commitment to the Fairbanks Emergency 
Communications Center. We look forward to many years of exceptional service. 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 31 of 35



HOTEL/MOTEL DISCRETIONARY FUND COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES-JANUARY 9, 2019, 5:30 PM 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

The Hotel-Motel Discretionary Fund Committee convened at 5:30 p.m. on the above date to conduct a 
Wrap-up Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Council 
Member June Rogers (Seat F) presiding and with the following members in attendance: 

Members Present: 

Absent: 

Also Present: 

Kathryn Fitzgerald, Seat A (arrived at 5:43 p.m.) 
Ron Woolf, Seat B 
John Nobles, Seat C 
John Kohler, Jr., Seat D 
Jim Soileau, Seat E 

None 

D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Diana Hebel, Deputy City Clerk I 
Carrie Peterson, Grants Administrator 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINlJTES 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2018 

Mr. Woolf, seconded by Mr. Nobles, moved to APPROVE the Regular Meeting Minutes of December 
6,2018. 

Chair Rogers took a voice vote on the approval of the Minutes, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT (limited to three minutes) 

There was no public comment. 

NEW BUSINESS 

a) Review of Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Grant Application and Committee Process 

Chair Rogers asked Ms. Peterson if the Finance Department had any recommended changes to the 
2019 application; Ms. Peterson stated they did not. 

Clerk Snider reviewed all the changes the Committee had asked to be made at the Preliminary Meeting 
in November. 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBA TIM TRANSCRIPT 
Hotel-Motel Discretionary Fund Committee 

January 9, 2019 
Page l of2 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 32 of 35



Chair Rogers reviewed the application with the Committee, page by page, to see if there were any 
recommended changes. The Committee agreed to the following changes and directed Clerk Snider to 
update the 2019 application: 

• The header on page 1 of the application was updated to state "2019" Application. 
• The two statements above the checklists on the upper half of page 4 were changed to bold font. 
• An asterisk and statement was added to page 1, question 8, to read "*This amount should match 

the total amount listed in Item # 11." 
• The statement on page 3, question 11, "The total amount should match the request listed in Item 

#8" was moved down to appear below the "TOT AL AMOUNT" in the same question and was 
reworded with an asterisk to read, "*This amount should match the request listed in Item #8." 

Ms. Fitzgerald expressed concern that an applicant may be disqualified if they submitted a brochure, 
program, or rack card as proof of use of the logo since the application states that applicants are 
prohibited from including "promotional items in the application, such as pens, bags, or trinkets." 
Members discussed the issue briefly and agreed that an applicant would not be disqualified for such. 

Members discussed whether to remove the checkboxes on the upper half of page 4 but decided to leave 
the checkboxes. 

b) Discussion Regarding Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Logo 

Chair Rogers mentioned some of the feedback she had heard about the logo, particularly in regard to 
the poor resolution of the logo. Ms. Fitzgerald volunteered to help improve the resolution of the logo; 
she requested that the Clerk send her the logo image files. 

Chair Rogers asked Committee members if they would like to modify the logo, particularly by placing 
a second circle around the outer border so that it would mirror the City Seal. Members discussed this 
change and other possible changes, but the majority agreed to leave the logo design as-is. 

NEXT MEETING 

Members agreed that the Committee did not need to meet again before the Preliminary Meeting and 
discussed November meeting dates. The Committee agreed to meet at noon on November 7. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Soileau, seconded by Mr. Kohler, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 

Chair Rogers called for objection and, hearing none, declared the 
meeting ADJOURNED at 6:45 p.m. 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
Hotel-Motel Discretionary Fund Committee 

January 9, 2019 
Page 2 of2 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 33 of 35



CLAY STREET CEMETERY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES-OCTOBER 2, 2019 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

The Clay Street Cemetery Commission convened at 5:00 p.m. on the above date to conduct a 
Regular Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with 
Chair Aldean Kilbourn (Seat C) presiding and with the following members in attendance: 

Members Present: George Dalton, Seat A 
Michael Gibson, Seat B 
Frank Turney, Seat D 

Absent: Julie Jones, Seat E 
Karen Erickson, Seat F 
Vacant, Seat G 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes September 4, 2019 

Mr. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Gibson, moved to APPROVE the Regular Meeting Minutes of 
September 4, 2019. 

Chair Kilbourn called for objection, and hearing none, so 
ORDERED. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Gibson, moved to APPROVE the Agenda. 

Chair Kilbourn called for objection, and hearing none, so 
ORDERED. 

COMMUNICATIONS TO COMMISSION 

a) Desiree Williams Information Request, Ernest J Crouse 

Mr. Gibson stated he would like to find out more information about Ernest J. Crouse, a request 
that came in from Desiree Williams. 

EVENTS & PUBLIC RELATIONS 

Chair Kilbourn proposed a schedule for marker work parties to take place in April. 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 34 of 35



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Public Works Director Jeff Jacobson could not attend the meeting but was able to provide 
commission members with updates to several of the projects that have been taking place at the 
cemetery. Commission members discussed the pea gravel that was delivered, the bent sign that 
has been fixed, the order from Interior Mobile Welding, wayfinding signs, the markers that have 
been ordered, as well as Frank Miller's damaged grave marker that will be fixed and paid for by 
Public Works. 

NEW BUSINESS 

a) City Bed Tax Presentation 

Chair Kilbourn reported that Julie Jones will be working on the City Bed Tax Grant application, 
and she will have it filled out and ready for the presentation. 

OPEN AGENDA 

Chair Kilbourn stated she will look into using the remaining funds in from the 2018 bed tax grant 
for rack cards for the Clay Street Cemetery. 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

The next Regular Meeting of the Clay Street Cemetery Commission is scheduled for Wednesday, 
November 6, 2019. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Gibson, seconded by Mr. Dalton, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. There being no 
objection, the meeting was ADJOURNED at 5:50 p.m. 

~db,!!;__ 
Aldean Kilbourn, Chair 

Transcribed by: EB 

Clay Street Cemetery Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBA TIM TRANSCRIPT October 2, 2019 
Page 2 of2 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 25, 2019 35 of 35


	AGENDA - November 25, 2019
	MINUTES - September 23, 2019
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Renewals

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4895
	Resolution No. 4896

	WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL
	Acknowledgement of Payment of Lateral Hire Bonuses (FPD)
	Acknowledgement of Payment of Lateral Hire Bonus (FECC)
	Hotel/Motel Discretonary Fund Committee Meeting Minutes - 01/09/19
	Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes - 10/02/19




